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HEARI NG DAY 2
01-H18
COGEMA Resources Inc.:
Application for a licence to operate the
McCl ean Lake Operation and to increase the
production Iimt
We will now then nove to item
number 3 of the agenda. This is Hearing Day 2 on
the matter of the application by COGEMA Resources
Inc. for a licence to operate the MCl ean Lake
Operation and to increase the production limt.
We will note that Hearing Day 1
was held on June 28, 2001. COGEMA Resources
Inc.'s application is noted in CVMD document 01-H18
and the public was invited to participate either
by oral presentation or written presentation on
Hearing Day 2 and | will note that the Menmbers of
the Comm ssion that were present for Day 1
included M. Graham Dr. Giroux, Dr. Barnes,
Ms MaclLachl an and nysel f.
We will note that the Notice of
Public Hearing was published on April 23, 2001 and
2001- H6 Amendment was published on May 31, 2001.
Presentati ons were made on Day 1

by both the applicant and by Comm ssion staff, and
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both the applicant and CNSC staff have presented
suppl ementary i nformation.

That said, | would |like to begin
then with the oral presentation by COGEMA
Resources Inc. as outlined in CVD docunent O1-
H18.1B and | will turn it over to M. Pollock for
your conmments.

M . Pol |l ock.

01-H18. 1B
Oral Presentation by COGEMA Resources | nc.

MR. POLLOCK: Thank you.

Good morni ng, Madam Chai r man and
Members of the Conm ssion. | am Robert Poll ock,
Vice President of Environment, Health and Safety
of COGEMA Resources Inc. Also present again today
on behal f of COGEMA Resources Inc. is Dr. John
Rowson, General Manager of MCl ean Lake Operati on.

We are here to provide
suppl ementary information at this Day 2 public
hearing on our application for renewal of the CNSC
operating licence for MCl ean Lake Operation. Our
application also included a request for an
increased annual Iimt for production of uranium

concentrate.
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We will provide informati on on two
topics. Firstly, we wish to provide further
information with respect to the Iicence term as
requested of us at the Day 1 public hearing.

Secondly, we wish to comment on
the subm ssion by Ms. Maisie Shiell, referenced
as CMD 01-H18. 2.

We will also be pleased to answer
any further questions which menbers of the
Comm ssion may wish to direct to us.

John Rowson will now speak to the
first point.

DR. ROWSON: Madam Chair, Menmbers
of the Comm ssion. W have requested a five-year
termin our previous witten subm ssion and
presentation. The rationale can be summrized as
follows.

One, we have outlined a m ning and
mlling plan extending to 2006. The m ning plan
is based on conpl etion of mning of the Sue "A",
Sue "B" and Sue "C" open pits by 2005 with

reclamati on activities continuing through 2006.

MIling is expected to continue at an aver age
production rate of six mllion pounds of U,0, per
year with an annual limt of eight mIlIlion pounds
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requested. Completion of the Sue open pits wil
produce an ore inventory sufficient to feed the
mll for approximtely five years.

Two, policies and progranms for
protecti on of workers and the environment are in
pl ace. These have been described in our previous
subm ssions, have been reviewed in detail by CNSC
staf f agai nst the requirements of the Nucl ear
Saf ety and Control Act and its regul ations and
found to be acceptabl e.

Three, satisfactory performance
has been denonstrated. We believe that a high
| evel of performance has been demonstrated in
protecti on of workers and the environment, in
terms of both the capabilities of the physical
facilities and in their operational management.

As noted in our closing summary at
the Day 1 public hearing, we expect this high
| evel of performance to continue, given the
organi zational and quality managenent systens in
pl ace.

Four, conpliance nmeasures are in
pl ace. These include both the regular reporting
whi ch we perform as specified in our licensing

document ati on and i nspections assessments and
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audi ts which have been, and will continue to be,
carried out by CNSC staff.

On the basis of the factors
descri bed on the previous slide, we believe that
t he benefits which would result froman increased
licensing termcan be realized without in any way
conprom sing protection of workers or the
envi ronment .

The benefits of an increased
licensing termare summari zed as foll ows.

One, it would allow our resources
to be increasingly focused on continuously
i mproving the operation rather than on |icensing
related activities which represents no change from
t he existing status.

It would reduce our direct costs
associated with travel and time for |icensing
activities. Although these are not a | arge
proportion of total costs and are an expenditure
essential to our operation, all expenditures need
to be optim zed.

Three, in our opinion, there would
al so be benefits to CNSC staff in that efforts
could be increasingly focused on conpliance

activities. As well, optim zation of time and
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travel costs inportant to regul atory agenci es, not
just industry.

Lastly, but by no neans | east, we
seen an opportunity to enhance the effectiveness
of the operations of the Comm ssion by avoiding a
i censing schedule where a |icence amendnment for
McCl ean Lake wol d proceed shortly after a |licence
renewal .

As noted on page 6 of our previous
subm ssion of May 28, 2001, we have plans for
several future activities which will require
i cence amendnments.

I n our opinion, it will be much
nore effective to use consideration of a licence
amendment as an opportunity both to review
performance of the existing facility and to
consi der the proposed changes. The alternative of
reviewi ng the performance of the existing MClean
Lake facility at a hearing for |licence renewal,
followed relatively soon by a hearing for an
amendment, does not appear to be an effective
schedul e.

I n order to achieve these
benefits, the licensing termneeds to be | ong

enough to make it likely that the next |icensing
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action will be triggered by an amendment, but not
so long as to be inappropriate in the event that
t he amendment does not materialize as currently
expect ed.

We are aware of the CNSC staff
reconmendations for a four-year termfor the
McCl ean Lake Operation operating licence. This is
one year |less than we originally requested and we
believe that four years provide some margin in the
peri od over which operations at McCl ean Lake wil
be as described in this licence application. W
al so expect to return for a |icence amendnent
within this period. W thus concur with the CNSC
staff recomendation for a four-year term

Madam Chair, to provide comments
on the intevenor's subm ssion by Ms. Shiell our
presentation will continue with Bob Poll ock.

MR. POLLOCK: Thanks, John.

As John has noted, we also wish to

comment on CMD 01-H18.2 which is the written

subm ssion by Mrs. Maisie Shiell on our licence
application. It focuses on the proposed increase
in production fromsix to eight mllion pounds

U,0, per year.

As a starting point, |let me make
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it clear that we agree fully that it is necessary
to protect the environnment not only for our
generation, but also for future generations.

We believe that our McCl ean Lake Operation does
exactly that, while providing many benefits to
northern residents and nore broadly to the

provi nce and country.

That is why we take Mrs. Shiell's
concerns very seriously. W are writing to her
directly since it appears that she has not taken
into consideration key points in the anal yses
contained in our environnmental assessment of the
proposed production increase which was prepared to
assi st CNSC staff in devel oping their
environmental screening report.

We wi sh also to reiterate our
belief that the existing McClean Lake Operation
has undergone a conplete and ri gorous process of
environment al assessment, approval by governments
and licensing by regulatory agencies. W thus
agree that the focus now should be on the proposed
change.

These key points are summari zed on
this slide.

As noted on page 43 of our
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previous written subm ssion, that's CvVD 01-H18.1
we have used operational data to | ook for trends
in various paraneters, including the JEB water
treat ment plant performance paraneters with
urani um producti on. Over the period when data
were avail able for the analysis, the monthly m |
producti on when converted to an equi val ent annual
rate, varied froma rate corresponding to just
under six mllion pounds U0, to just over eight
mllion pounds U,0; per year.

G ven that the monthly production
rates ranged over the full range of interest,
statistical analyses were performed to determ ne
whet her key performance parameters varied with
mont hly production. For the JEB water treatnent
pl ant, the paranmeters were the pH and
concentration in the effluent of total suspended
solids and seven key radionuclides and metals,

i ncludi ng radium 226 and uranium and al so the
total nonthly contam nant | oadings for the four
key potential contam nants of arsenic, nickel,
radi um 226 and urani um

The results showed firstly nonth-
to-month variations, but no statistically

significant trend for any parameter with monthly
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urani um production. This is to be expected due to
the variability inherent to the water treatment
process and in the incomng feed flowto the

pl ant .

Subst anti al margi ns between
denmonstrated performance and required performance,
with the latter defined by predictions made in
previ ous environmental assessments and, where
appropriate, by regulatory limts.

This informati on was contained in
the detail ed project description which we have
previously provided to Ms. Shiell and the Ra-226
data was di scussed with her at the public meeting
in Saskatoon. We believe this information al one
provi des a substantive response to her concerns
about the m 1l production increase.

In our letter we are indicating
our availability for further direct clarification
of the data and of our analyses, if she so wi shes,
because we do not believe this information has
been adequately taken into consideration.

Poi nt nunber two, previous
assessments of the existing facilities. The
facilities and activities proposed for MCl ean

Lake were extensively considered, including public
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heari ngs, by the Joint Federal -Provincial Panel on
Urani um M ni ng Devel opnments in Northern

Saskat chewan between 1991 and 1997. Panel
reconmendations resulting fromthese environment al
assessments were reflected in the conditions
contained in the federal and provincial decisions
approving the McCl ean Lake project to proceed.

These recommendati ons and the
government deci sions have been further considered
within the detailed |icensing process foll owed
previously by the Atom ¢ Energy Control Board and
now by t he CNSC.

We believe these previous
assessments provide a conmprehensi ve and sound
basis for the approval and licensing of the
existing facilities. [In our opinion the only
rel evant environmental assessment issue arising
fromMs. Shiell's subm ssion is consideration of
t he proposed production increase. W believe that
t he concl usions of the environnmental screening
performed by CNSC staff for this proposed change
are warranted. As indicated point one previously,
we are available to further clarify our data and
anal yses should she so wi sh

I n summary, we appreciate
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Ms. Shiell's concern for the environment and

beli eve that a closer exam nation of the data and

anal yses for McCl ean Lake support the concl usion

t hat the proposed increase in mll production is

not |likely too cause significant adverse

environmental effects, taking into account the

m tigating measures which have al ready

demonstrated their effectiveness. W are in the

process of responding directly to Ms. Shiell and

woul d wel come further direct communi cation if she

so wi shes.

Thi s concl udes our suppl ementary

information. We will be pleased to answer any

guestions which Comm ssion menbers may wi sh to

direct to us.

Thank you.
THE CHAI RPERSON: Thank you,

M . Pol |l ock.

Wth the perm ssion of the

Comm ssion Menbers, | would like to call for the

presentation by staff on this project before we

open the floor for questions.

t he oral

On that basis, | would call for

presentation by CNSC staff as outlined in

Comm ssi on Menber Docunents CMD 01-H18. A1 and
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01- H18. B.
| would call upon M. Pereira,

pl ease.

01-H18. A1/ 01-H18.B
Oral Presentation by CNSC St aff

MR. PEREI RA: Good norning, Madam
Chair and Members of the Comm ssion. M name is
Ken Pereira. | amthe Director General of the
Directorate of Fuel Cycle and Materials
Regul ati on.

At the Comm ssion hearing held in
June, CNSC staff recommended the issuance of a
|'icence to Consunmer Resources Inc. for continued
operation of their MCl ean Lake facility.

A licence with a two year duration
was recommended at the time in accordance with the
practice for licences issued to major facilities.

I n response to the discussion
during the hearing on the license termissue, CNSC
staff has submtted to the Comm ssion, in
CMD 01-H18.B, a review of the basis for
consi deration of a longer termlicence for the
McCl ean Lake operation.

Factors that support the new
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recommendation of a licence with a four-year term
are:

the stability of the activities
anticipated at the McCl ean Lake operation over the
proposed license term

t he status of the licensee's
managed prograns at the facility;

the licensee's performance as
assessed by CNSC staff over the term of the
current licence; and

requirements in the licence for
regul ar reporting to CNSC staff on activities
ai med at prevention of undue risk to health,
safety and the environnment.

Besi des the CNSC staff assessnment
and recommendati on, the Comm ssion also has before
it a screening report prepared pursuant to the
requi rements of the Canadi an Environment al
Assessnment Act.

It should be noted that the
Canadi an Environmental Assessment Act requires
that the Comm ssion render a decision regarding
t he concl usions of the screening report prior to
deci ding on the renewal of the license.

CNSC staff would be pleased to
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answer any questions the Conmm ssion may have
regardi ng our recommendati on for renewal of the
licence for the McCl ean Lake operation.

THE CHAI RPERSON: Thank you very
much, M. Pereira.

Wth that, | would |ike to open
the floor to questions fromthe Comm ssion
Members.

Dr. Barnes.

MEMBER BARNES: | have a point of
order .

Since the applicant has brought
into the discussion Ms. Shiell's letter, would it
be appropriate to introduce Ms. Shiell's document
bef ore going on, since she is not here | presume?

THE CHAI RPERSON: Is that the wish
of the Comm ssion?

Okay. The Chair agrees with
Dr. Barnes, then, and we will bring into the
hearing record the written subm ssion from

Ms. Shiell's as noted in CVMD Docunent 01-H18. 2.

01-H18. 2
Witten subm ssion from Ms. Miisie Shiel

--- The following is taken as read into the record

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

21

"To: President Linda Keen
and Comm ssi on menbers,
Canadi an Nucl ear Safety
Comm ssion, Ottawa
From Maisie Shiell, #11-125
Avenue O South, Saskatoon,
Sk. S7M 2R4
Re: CMD 01-H18 - The
Li censi ng of Renewal and
| ncreased Production at
McCl ean Lake M ne
1. The Licensing of the
Proposed I ncrease of U308
Production

In the CVMD 01-H18, the
CNSC staff has advised the
Canadi an Nucl ear Safety
Comm ssioners to grant a
renewal of the Licence to
COGEMA to process six mllion
pounds U308 annually at the
JEB mll. The staff have
al so recommended that the NSC
Comm ssi on grant COGEMA a

Li cence to i ncrease
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production by two mllion
pounds per year, i.e an
increase of 33%

Section 20(1) of the
Canadi an Envi ronnment
Assessnment Act (CEAA) nust be
applied before an increase of
producti on can be |icensed.
In the CVMD 01-H18, the staff
are advocating that this
shoul d be acconplished by
appl ying subSection 20(1)(a).

Section 20(1) requires
t hat the responsible
authority shall follow one of
three options: (a); (b); or
(c), taking into account the
screening report as well as
any public concerns. The
subSection 20(1)(a) option
all ows the responsi bl e
authority to exercise his/her
power of authority to licence
the project, if helshe,

taki ng i nto account public
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concern, considers that "the
project is not likely to
cause significant adverse
environmental effects' and
taking into account any
m tigating measures.
Further, the responsible
authority is required to
ensure that any mtigating
measures are inplemented

How much evi dence is the
staff required to have in
order to advise that "the
project is not likely to
cause significant adverse
environmental effect?

| suggest that, in the
case of mlling high-grades
of uranium at this time,
there is hardly enough
evi dence to suggest that
increasing annually 33%
production "is not likely to
cause significant adverse

environmental effects'.
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There is acknow edged
uncertainty in the scientific
comunity regarding the
effects of al pha-irradiation
on the aquatic biota
[ Decenber draft of the PSL- 2,
Section 3.4.1.(89), as well
as coments to the July Draft
of that document and
i ndustry's WG3 and WA
reports] Because Radi um 226
and Thorium 230 are in the
mll effluent, it is
necessary to consider the
|l ong half-1ives of these
radi onucl i des, as well as the
fact that alpha is a high-LET
radi ation.

If it is uncertain
whet her or not the project is
li kely to cause "significant
adverse environnment al
effects', taking into account
the mtigating measures, the

responsi bl e authority is
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required to follow the
subSection 20(1)(c)(i) option
and "refer the project to the
M nister for referral to a
medi at or or revi ew panel

In the case of the COGEMA
application to increase the
annual production of
hi gh-grade urani um by 33% |
suggest that it would be nore
appropriate to acknow edge
that it is uncertain whether
or not there is likely to be
adverse environmental effects
fromthe long-lived,
hi gh- LET, al pha-emtting
Th-230 and Ra-226 and their
al pha-emtting progeny
accunul ating in the
sedi ments. Thus, subSection
20(1)(c) (i) would be in
order.

The only evidence that
exists to support the

contention that adding two
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m |l lion pounds annually to
the mll "is not likely to
cause significant adverse
environmental effects' is
what can be observed in
changes in taxa and bi omass
to plant life. |AEA
TECDOC 1091, 1999,
Section 4.3 says that
“bi ol ogical surveillance can
reveal trends or differences.
However, the occurrence of
observed trends or
di fferences can be difficult
or inmpossible to interpret
since they may occur
naturally for unknown reasons
or in response to
non-radi ol ogi cal stresses.
Therefore, reliance solely on
bi ol ogi cal surveillance is
not recomended.’
(1 AEA 1999)

Present dose and dose

rate effects "limts' [ENEV
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(Estimated No Effect Val ue)
LEL (Lowest Effect Level)
NOEL (No Observed Effect
Level ) etc] are based on
scientific studies on

organi sms i npacted by | ow- LET
radi ati on and/ or on
observation. Although there
have been a few | aboratory
experiments with

al pha-irradiation for genetic
or somatic effect, there does
not appear to have been any
experiments for genetic or
somatic effects from
Radi um 226 irradiation. 1In
Dr. Patsie Thonmpson's

subm ssion to the Joint Panel
(May 30, 1996), she attached
a list of a nunber of
experiments that have been
conducted on organi sns

i nhabiting | akes contam nat ed
with beta-emtting and

gamma-em tting radi onucli des.
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But there does not appear to
be any such experinments
conducted on organi sns
i nhabiting al pha-irradiated
| akes such as Beaverl odge
Lake. It is possible that
t he genetic and somatic
effects are occurring, but
t hey are not being detected.
2. Environmental I|npacts
Section 16(1)(a) and (b)
(CEAA) requires that the
environmental effects and the
cunmul ative effects be
screened. And their
significance exam ned.
However, in the Screening
Report, there is no mention
of the environnmental effects
fromthe extra
al pha-irradiation in the
bi ota due to the extra
producti on of U308 annually.
I n COGEMA's " Project

Description of Increased M|
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Production Rate' (Appendix 1,
Section 4.3.2), | quote:
"Di scharges of treated
water fromthe JEB WIP
and Sue WIP, through the
Si nk/ Vul ture Treated
Ef fluent Systemto the
East Basin of MCl ean
Lake and then on to
Col lins Creek, represent
the main operation inmpact
of McCl ean Lake operation
on the environment”
(emphasi s added)
| agree with the above
guot ed assessnment. And,
because of this, I am
concerned that the Iiving
environment in the sedi ment
-- i.e. invertebrates in Sink
Lake, Vulture Lake, MCl ean
Lake and, to a | esser extent,
Collins Creek are becom ng
irradiated with long-Ilived

Radi um 226 and its
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shorter-lived progeny. But

apparently, in the "m xing

zone' (Sink, Vulture and

McCl ean Lakes), this inpact

has been di scounted. Such a

"m xing Zone' is not

descri bed in CEAA. By what

authority is one allowed to

irradiate organisnms in the

"m xing Zone'?

3. Increased U308 Production
| ncreased production of

U308 annual ly woul d nmean al so

t he annual increase of

Lead- 210 and Pol onium 210

accunul ating in the sedi ments

and in the biota.

The cunul ative effects
over the project's lifetime
are considered in the COGEMA
st at ement Appendix 1
Section 4.2.4. COGEMA
suggests that there "could’
be "no change' to the

environmental effects in the
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long-termlife of the
operation. The reason given
is that "the cumul ative
effects over the project's
long-termlifetime is
determ ned by the total
amount of ore processed.

| agree that this could
probably be true for the
non-radi oactive chem cal
contam nants (and, to a
certain extent, for Uranium
with its very | ow
radi oactivity) However, |
believe it will not be true
for Radium 226, which is
radi oactively decaying into

shorter-lived radi onucli des.

Lead-210 and Pol oni um 210

wi Il be accunul ating in the
sedi ments. Therefore, when
mlling 8 mllion pounds per
year, there would have

accurmul ated in the sedinents,

and in the biota living in

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

32

t hese sedi ments, one sixth
nmor e Pol oni um 210 and

Lead- 210 (which will be
produci ng more Pol oni um 210)
than when mlling 6 mllion
pounds per year. Table A4 in
t he COGEMA st at ement
(appendi x 1, subAppendix A),
t he mont hly | oadi ngs, in Mega
Becquerels, are given for
each month, the Novenmber and
December | oadi ngs were both
4,000 MBg/ nonth al t hough
there was no mlling in
November and December. |If
COGEMA had been mlling the
8 mllion pounds U308 per
year, these | oadi ngs woul d
probably have been 8 or

9, 000 MBg/ nonth. (October

| oadi ngs were 7,000 and
January | oadi ngs were 10, 000
MBg/ mont h). This woul d have
added 16 or 17,000 Moq

Radi um 226 to the | oadi ngs
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during the year. Therefore,
t here woul d have been an
extra Pb-210 and Po-210
accunmul ation in the sedi ment.
| am concerned that the
Pol oniumwi I |, potentially,
be creating much of the
genetic and somati c changes
in the biota.

Al t hough at the end of
m ning, there will be | ess
Po-210 and Pb-210 produced
because of the time saved, |
am concerned that during the
m ning these i mpacts will be
happeni ng and spreading. M
concern really relates to
the fact that these inpacts
are being allowed to happen
at all.
4. Long Term Effects

Appendi x 1
(Section 4.2.2) of the COGEVMA
St at ement deals with the

potential |ong-term
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environmental effects from
arsenic. However, COGEMA
does not nmention the
potential |ong-termeffects
for the long-1lived,
al pha-em tting radionuclides
Thorium 230 and Radi um 226.

Because Radi um 226 wi |
be decaying for thousands of
years (1600 year half-life),
and because it's progeny is
accunul ating in the sedi ments
and in the biota, from which
the Radium 226 is likely to
be recycl ed back into plant
life fromthe detritus,
shoul d we not al so be
considering the radionuclides
for their potential |ong-term
effects?
5. Mtigating Measures

The JEB and Sue Water
Treatment Plants mtigate the
rel ease of the | arger

guantities of Radi um 226,

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

35

com ng out of the mll, to
the environment. The release
of Radium 226 fromthese
wat er treatment plants is
all owed to be as high as
1 Bg/litre in a grab sampl e,
but is limted to
0.37 Bqg/litre for the nonthly
mean. As COGEMA rightly said
(Appendi x 1 Section 4.3.2),
these relatively high
rel eases "represent the main
operational impact of MClean
Lake operations on the
environment'. These rel eases
flowinto Sink Lake, Vulture
Lake, McCl ean Lake and
Col I i ns Creek.

There is no data to
i ndi cate how nuch of this
Radi um 226 has gone into the
sedi ments during the year-
and- eight months the JEB
m ||l has been operating. The

sedi nents and bi ota were | ast
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tested at McCl ean Lake "in
1998 and early 1999
(CMD 01-H18). This would
have been prior to mll
start-up.
6. Potential Effects caused
by Al pha-em tting
Urani um deri ved Radi onucli des
Thorium 230 and
Radi um 226, which are both
al pha-em tting radionuclides
(as has been said) have very
|l ong hal f-1ives:
80, 000 years and 1600 years
respectively. Radium 226
decays into a number of
shorter-lived al pha-emtters.
Pb-210, a beta-emtter in
t his Radi um 226 decay chain,
has a 22 year half-life and
decays into al pha-emtting
Pol oni um 210. Thus, any of
t hese al pha-em tting
radi onucl i des that get into

pl ant, animal, soil, sedinent
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or water can potentially
cause adverse genetic or
somatic effects at very | ow
doses and dose rates
(Gof man, 1980; Aspect
Consul tants, 1980).
Furthermore, damage caused by
al pha radiation is not |ikely
to be repaired (NCRP-104;
Roots et al, 1990)

As | have al ready
i ndi cated, the cal cul ati on by
whi ch the dose and dose rate
obj ectives and gui delines for
al pha-irradiation is
presently being estimated is
by extrapol ation fromthe
effects, scientifically found
in aquatic biota inhabiting
gamm- and beta-irradiated
| akes (Thompson, 1996; PSL-2
Supporting Document). And
t hen nodified by an RBE.
CNSC uses a val ue of 40.
Whet her COGEMA uses an RBE,
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(or what RBE value) | do not
know. But, | repeat: there
are no agreed upon,
scientifically-derived test
results for the genetic or
somatic effects of organisns
i nhabiting Radi um 226- and-
its- progeny irradiated
| akes.

Al pha is a high-LET
radi ati on. An al pha particle
only travels about 40 m cron,
but it causes extrenely dense
ionization. |f an al pha
particle gets into the
bl oodstream it can get taken
to such organs as ovari es,
testes, liver or kidney. Or
it can get into the bone
marrow. And, as | have said
above: ~damage caused by
al pha-irradiation i s not
likely to be repaired’
Further, "there is evidence

t hat damage caused by al pha

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o s~ W N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

39

radi ation is fundamentally
different fromthat of
| ow- LET radi ation [PSL- 2
December 2000,
Section 3.4.1.(89) credited
to Goodhead et al 1993]
Treated m |l effluents,
carrying relatively smal
guantities of Radium 226 fl ow
t hrough a series of | akes and
streanms to Wil | aston Lake.
Some of the radiumderived
al pha-emtters get into the
sediments in which Iiving
creatures dwell. And these
animal s and plants formthe
base of the food chain. How
confident can we be that
genetic and somati c damage
done to the benthic
invertebrates in Sink Lake,
Vul ture Lake and McCl ean Lake
wi Il not adversely affect the
food chain in the | ong-ternf

The CVMD 01 H18 only accounts
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for the Radium 226 in the
wat er at the outlet at the
McCl ean Lake East Bay. | am
sceptical regarding the fact
that the ten to fifteen
kil ometres of the "~m xing
zone' has been discounted. |
cannot have confidence that
there will be no |long-term
significant adverse
environmental effects, if we
rely on the traditional
st andards, such as the SSWQO
in the water several
kilometres fromthe mll;
Or, that "“cunul ative mass
| oading is well within the
|icensee's action level,' as
the CMD tells us.

By excl uding these
al pha-em tting radionuclides
in the sediments in Sink
Lake, Vulture Lake and
McCl ean Lakes -- because they

are considered to be in the
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"m xing zone' -- we will be
excluding their potenti al
| ong-term genetic and
somatic effects. Would it
not be more appropriate to be
aware, and |listening to what
is being said by scientists,
such as D. T. Goodhead in a
1993 paper cited in
Section 3.4.1.(89) in the
December 2000 PSL-2 Draft
Assessment, in which it is
said (I repeat here) "There
is evidence that damage
caused by al pha radiation is
fundamentally different than
t hat of | ow-LET radiation'.
The Decenber PSL-2 Draft
Assessnent cited twenty eight
experi ments which had been
searching for an appropriate
value for an RBE (relative
bi ol ogi cal effectiveness) of
al pha radiation, in order to

describe "toxic' in the
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Canadi an Envi ronment al
Protection Act for

radi onuclides. The smal
number of these experiments
t hat used the in vivo nethod
found rel atively high RBEs.
According to the Decenber
PSL-2 Draft,

Section 3.4.1.(89), these

in vivo studies were
conducted at "relatively | ow
doses and dose rates and are
much cl oser to natural
exposure conditions than

in vitro studies that used
very high doses and dose
rates'. The experinments that
showed "~ much hi gher

(>100 RBE values) ... were
obt ai ned usi ng endpoints
(reproduction and i mmune
system function) that are

i mportant for the maintenance
of healthy, actively

reproduci ng popul ati ons
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(Emphasi s added)

A highly regarded
scientist from Engl and, Jan
Penreath, in her review of
the July PSL-2 draft
assessment, regarding the RBE
val ue of 40, which the
aut hors had used, said (in
part) “~There is still no
"right" answer ... | think we
need a quantity and unit to
descri be, more truthfully,
the likely effects of
radi ati on on fauna and flora

| amtherefore not sure
t hat an ecodosi metry
wei ghting factor is a
particularly useful concept,
it is too restrictive.'
Penreath conti nued by
suggesting that a number of
scientists are inventing
their own term nol ogy which,
she says, may be a good thing

because it may " draw
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attention to the need for us
all to get our act together
on this issue.’

In spite of this
unresol ved question regarding
the effects of
al pha-radi ation, the CNSC
staf f are recomendi ng t hat
CEAA Section 20(1)(a) be
followed -- that it is
unli kely that the project
wi |l cause significant
adverse envi ronment al
effects. | do not believe
t hat we have sufficient
evi dence to say this.
7. Concl usion

In my opinion, it may not
be true to say that allow ng
an annual 33% i ncreased U308
production at the JEB m ||
"is not likely to cause
significant adverse
environmental effects.' |

believe it would be closer to
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the truth to foll ow CEAA
subSection 20(1)(c)(i) which
says: if it is uncertain
whet her the project
is likely to cause ..
significant adverse
environmental effects', the
responsi bl e authority should
refer the project to the
M nister for referral to a
medi at or or panel review.
Under such circunstances, it
woul d be possible to discuss
such problens as | have
rai sed above.
| f such long-termeffects
fromthe long-Ilived
Thorium 230 and Radi um 226 or
fromtheir progeny do occur,
this may cause serious
| ong-term environnment al
probl ems for future
generations in the years and
centuries to cone.

Canada endorses the
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concept of "~ Sustainable

Devel opment’ in the Preanble
to the Canadi an Environment al
Assessnment Act, saying (in
part): ~WHEREAS t he

Gover nment of Canada seeks to
achi eve sust ai nabl e

devel opment by conservi ng and
enhanci ng envi ronnment al
guality and by encouraging
and pronoting econom c

devel opment that conserves
and enhances environment al
quality;’

Sust ai nabl e devel opment,
as defined in Our Conmon
Future, authored by the World
Comm ssi on on Environment and
Devel opment (1987): "to
ensure that it (the proposed
devel opment) meets the needs
of the present w thout
conprom sing the ability of
future generations to neet

t heir own needs.
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The aut hors conti nue:
"The concept of sustainable
devel opment does imply
[imts -- not absolute
[imts -- but limtations
i mposed by the present state
of technology'. Is it a lack
of the present state of
t echnol ogy that no evidence
exi sts regarding the genetic
and somatic effects of
al pha-emtting,
Urani um deri ved
radi onuclides? Or, is this
caused by a |l ack of political
will to have the necessary
studi es done? In
conversation with a radiation
technol ogi st recently, he
agreed with me that if such
studi es have been done with
organi sms contam nated with
beta- and gamma-irradiation,
he felt it should be

technically possible to do
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such studi es on organi sns
i nhabiting al pha-irradiated
| akes.

For its own integrity,
Canada needs to scrupul ously
followits environmental
laws. If it is technically
possible, it is important
t hat Canada makes sure that
studi es on the genetic and
somatic effects of organisns
[iving in Uraniumderived,
al pha-emtting irradiated
| akes be done before all ow ng
further high-grade m ning or
mlling to expand.
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Ener gy Control Board:

Subm ssion to Dr. Lee's Panel
Hearing May 30, 1996
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Uni versity Press, 1987.
Wor ki ng Group #3 "~ RBE and
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THE CHAI RPERSON: Therefore, |

will open the fl oor

to question on the |licensee's

presentation, the subm ssion by the Comm ssion

Staff and al so M s.

Shiell's.

On that basis, Dr. Barnes, would
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you |like to start the questioning?

MEMBER BARNES: | would just |ike
to take up a point made by Ms. Shiell. just to
get COGEMA's vi ew whether this is correct or not,
and that is her short paragraph at the end of
page 5. | will read it for the record.

"There is no data to indicate
how much of this Radium 26
has gone into the sedi nents
during the year- and- eight
nmont hs the JEB m || has been
operating. The sediments and
bi ota were | ast tested at

McCl ean Lake "in 1998 and
early 1999' (CMD 01- H18).
This woul d have been prior to
mll start-up.”

MR. POLLOCK: There certainly is a
record of the total ampunt of Radi um 226 rel ease
fromthe facility into the aquatic environnment. |
mean, that is clearly nmeasured at the point of
rel ease. So one knows the total amount and it is
well within the ampunts which were previously
esti mated and considered in the environnmental

assessment .
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One at the noment would need to
make a paper estimate of how nmuch of that radi um
had partitioned to the sedinments in the
i mmedi ately downstream area as opposed to how much
stayed in solution in the water colum. Those
estimates were in fact made in the environnmental
assessnent.

So what we can say is that we know
t hat the total amounts released are well within
t hose that were previously considered and
certainly there are estimtes of what the
partitioning would be.

In terms of when the next major
sanpling program woul d be, the next schedul ed
moni toring for sedi ment and benthic invertebrates
in the system then there is a series of |akes
t hat go downstream fromthe i mmedi ate poi nt of
rel ease.

The next series of measurenments of
t hese is schedul ed for next summer. W are
required to periodically produce a state of the
environment report on a cycle of every so many
years and the next one of these is due in May of
2003, which would be three years.

We think this is entirely
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appropriate that this provides, in effect, an
update of the baseline. One nmay start to see
changes that are measurable in the cl osest | akes
but they will not have propagated further
downstream over the first few years. So to the
extent that there is measured increases, one wil
see them start to develop and can then trace them
in future years, over the next -- we estimate this
will ultimately be a 40-year project.

THE CHAI RPERSON: Furt her
guestions, Dr. Barnes?

MEMBER BARNES: Again to COGEMA, |
woul d just like to take up a couple of questions
on your page 3 where you list four of the benefits
for an increased |license term summari ze,
et cetera.

Your second one said it would
reduce your direct costs associated with travel
and licensing activities.

"“Al t hough these are not a

| arge proportion, total costs
are an expenditure that would
need to be optim zed. "

Coul d you just tell us roughly --

if there was a percent perhaps it would be the
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most meani ngful way -- what percent they actually
do represent of your direct costs over a two-year
cycle at the present time?

MR. POLLOCK: | would need to take
out a pencil and paper and work out an actual
fraction. It is clearly quite a small fraction of
t he overall costs.

| know that we spend in the order
of perhaps $2 mllion to $2.5 mllion per site
overall on environment, health and safety support,
but much of that is in direct support of the
operation. So it is hard to break out how much of
that is specifically |icensing.

Certainly, you know, there are two
trips down here for two of us for two hearings,
pl us several person months of both staff time and
also fairly senior management time have gone into
t he preparation of these docunents which you have
had presented to you over the | ast few months. So
it is not a |large proportion.

We do operate, though, in a
conpetitive environment and we believe all our
costs should be optim zed.

MEMBER BARNES: | guess | was j ust

getting at the first two points there which you --
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the first one was:
"To all ow our resources to
increasingly focus on
continuously inmproving the
operation..." (As read)

| woul d have t hought that was what
you woul d be doi ng anyway:

"...rather than on
licensing-related activities
whi ch represent no change
fromthe existing status."”
(As read)

It seenms to me that COGEMA, |i ke
ot her companies, live and work within a regul atory
framework and | think the public -- this is an
i ssue which is of concern to the public overall,
but -- to see that the operations are being
conducted in an environnentally safe way.

So | really wasn't persuaded by
the first two points.

MR. POLLOCK: | guess | would just
offer the further observation that on a two-year
l'icensing cycle, fromthe time that we submt our
application for renewal, which in this case was

around the end of | ast year, or before the end of
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| ast year, until we have conpl eted the Day 2
public hearing, that at variant over that period
of nine months. So, in effect, the relicensing
peri od takes about nine months out of the 24-nonth
cycle.

So | can't say that we spend that
whol e ni ne nmont hs continuously on this activity,
that is clearly not the case, but fromtime to
time we spend significant periods of time and nine
mont hs out of 24 is a significant proportion of
the total licensing period which -- | mean, if |
| ooked at a two-year licence, within 12 nmont hs we
woul d need to be starting to formul ate our
assessment and presentation, subm ssions for
renewal .

So again, it is not -- | have no
di spute and certainly agree, | believe we spend
what ever time is necessary and sufficient to do a
good j ob of oversight and |licensing-rel ated
activities, but they are not insignificant in
terms of the amount of time they take.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: M. Graham

MEMBER GRAHAM  Thank you.

My question is to CNSC staff and

it refers to Ms Shiell's subm ssion on page 4. It
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is in the second paragraph where she states:
“In Dr. Patsie Thonpson's
subm ssion to the Joint Panel
(May 30, 1996), she attached
a list of a nunmber of
experiments that have been
conducted on organi sns
i nhabiting | akes contam nat ed
with beta-emtting and
gamma-em tting
radi onucl i des. ™
My question is: She goes on
to say:
"But there does not appear to
be any such experinments
conducted on..."
ot her | akes, nanmely Beaverl| odge Lake.
| am not sure the | ocation of
Beaver| odge Lake in relationship, but my question
is: Is it necessary or should there be ongoing
experiments carried out on other | akes, other than
what was referred to in Ms Shiell's report?
MR. PEREIRA: | will request
Dr. Thompson to respond to the question.

DR. THOMPSON: Good nor ni ng.
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| think the m crophone may not
be working. | amnot 100 per cent sure. It is
fine now.

My name is Patsy Thompson and | am
the Dr. Thompson that Ms. Shiell refers to.

In the presentation that was made
to the panel hearing for the environnmental inpact
statements for McArthur River, Cigar Lake and
McCl ean, the studies that were quoted were those
t hat were conducted on Departnment of Energy sites
in the U S. where ponds were mainly contam nated
wi th radi onuclides and there were very few ot her
co-occurring contam nants.

In those cases, studies on fish
and invertebrates living in sediment were done to
| ook at the effects of radi onuclides on those
organi sms.

None of those sites had
al pha-emtters in the water or in the sedi ment.

It is clearly not a simlar situation in northern
Saskat chewan urani um m ne sites.

The Beaverl| odge site that
Ms. Shiell refers to is in northern Saskatchewan.
It was operated up until 1983, after which time it

was deconmm ssi oned.

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 00 N oo 0o M W N - O

60

There are several | akes on the
Beaver|l odge -- the ol d Beaverl odge property that
are contam nated by metal s and radi onuclides that
were rel eased during the operation.

We have revi ewed several reports
t hat have been conducted recently, over the | ast
10 years, by Canmeco and we are aware of
environmental effects on organisns living in those
receiving environnents. However, because there
are netals and radi onuclides in those
environments, it is very difficult to say exactly
what contam nant is causing -- what effect is
bei ng observed on fish for exanpl e.

It is more |likely that the
observed effects are due to several contam nants
present at the same tinme. So those | akes are not
appropriate to conduct studies on al pha-emtters
per se.

We do use the information from
Beaver| odge and from ot her sites that have
received treated effluent containing radi onuclides
and netals and have used the information to the
extent possible in making decisions on what types
of releases can be allowed fromcurrent operations

to ensure that the environnent is protected.
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So that information is used, but
it would be difficult to use those sites to
conduct controll ed experinments on al pha-emtters.
That is the reason it hasn't been done.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: M. Graham

MEMBER GRAHAM  Anot her question
to Dr. Thompson | guess.

Because there will be an increase
in production |evels, because this application
pertains to increased production |evels, wil
t here be increased research or increased tests
bei ng done on | akes around or on the water
supplies around McCl ean Lake?

DR. THOMPSON: The requirements
t hat were devel oped for the McCl ean Lake operation
when it was first |licensed back in 1999 were such
that they are not directly related to the anount
of production being done at MCl ean Lake.

What we did was, we took into
consideration all the nmodelling predictions that
were major in the EI'S, the environmental i npact
statement, based on predicted treated effl uent
concentrations and the amount of effluent that
woul d be rel eased over the operational period.

We took that information into
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consi deration and requested that COGEMA devel op an
environmental effects monitoring programto
investigate potential environment effects on the
receiving environnment, but also have triggers in
pl ace so that additional studies would be
triggered should certain |levels be exceeded in the
envi ronment .

Wth the additional production

rate, the total amount of radi onuclides being

rel eased to the systemover the operational life
won't change. It is just the duration of the
rel ease that will change.

The program as it is designed,
requires certain measurements to be taken
periodically and if certain triggers are exceeded
then the requirement is to go into a nore detail ed
assessment phase. So the nmore detail ed assessnent
phase woul d cover things that could happen that
were not predicted to happen.

So the program as it is now,
accommodat es changes i n production and potenti al
changes in environmental effects.

MEMBER GRAHAM  One ot her
guestion, just for clarification.

|f there are significant
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increases, if there are significant changes, do
these come back to us as a significant devel opment
report or do they just go to the licensee to
rectify? How are they dealt with? How do we know
if there has been a major problenf?

That is a clarification to the
Chair or to staff.

MR. PEREIRA: It is Ken Pereira
respondi ng.

We have certain criteria for
reporting to the Conm ssion on significant
devel opments, significant events, but it depends
very much on the nature of the increase. If it is
not something that is of inmmediate concern, then
we woul d report it to the Comm ssion in our
regul ar reports, but if it is an accident, a spill
that is unusual, then yes, it would come to the
Comm ssion in the way of a significant devel opment
report.

MEMBER GRAHAM | am not
necessarily tal king about a spill, but I amjust
t al ki ng about increased | evels and unforeseen
t hi ngs happening due to climate change or whatever
it mght be, excess precipitation, and so on. |If

t hat happened and there were maj or changes, does
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it come -- really the question | am asking is:
How are the public made aware of it, or is it just
wi thin internal?

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira again
respondi ng.

I n our strategy for longer term
licences we do have a plan to provide interim
reports to the Comm ssion and all of the
performance data and environmental protection
results would be recorded in those reports and so
the informati on would be provided to the
Comm ssion and to the public via such
presentations on a schedul ed basi s.

THE CHAI RPERSON: Dr. G roux.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Just follow ng up
on that |ast answer, you are talking about the
interimreport. This would be presented in an
open session such as this one here with
intervenors having the same opportunity to make
coments. That is your intention?

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira again.

Our intention is, yes, to provide
the information to the Conm ssion in an open
meeti ng.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Thank you.
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My further question is concerning
t he extension to four years -- | amtalking to
staff -- in your brief you mention and argue that
there are no di sadvantages to going this way, but
you don't spell out what advantages there m ght be
fromstaff's point of view We have heard about
t he applicant.

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira
respondi ng.

The advantages in going to a
| onger license term if the licensee's operation
is in a stable phase of operation, is that we have
more time to undertake a conpliance activity.
Compl i ance activities conmprise assessments of
their programs, audits of the various activities,
it could be health, physics, environnent al
protection, quality managenent. So staff then
have time in between |license renewal work to carry
out systematic assessments to confirmthat there
is in fact effective protection of health, safety
and the environnment.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Wbuld you go
t hrough the sanme exercise that Dr. Barnes
inflicted on COGEMA and tell us in ternms of

numbers of resources? Do you have any feeling for
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t he order of magnitude of the time that you m ght
save and apply differently?

MR. PEREIRA: | will ask
M. McCabe to provide the nore detail on our
activities, the scope of activities spent on
i censing and conpli ance.

MR. McCABE: Thank you.

Ri ck McCabe speaki ng.

We have never really kept close
track of that time that we utilize.

What we have done is, in
devel opi ng position profiles we have | ooked at
this over a |onger period of tinme and we esti mate
that the licensing -- | guess you have to
i ntegrate both what we do in assessnment and
i censing.

| am only speaking for our own
section. The others would vary significantly.

But fromour own section, we spend
about 40 to 50 per cent of our time doing
assessment and |licensing, so that is a significant
amount. We have ei ght people, so we spend, |
woul d say, half of our time on this type of
function. | can't give you any cost estimates or

anything like that, but it is in that range, with
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the two year licensing term

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Thank you.

THE CHAI RPERSON: If | may, just a
clarification.

The second part of Dr. Barnes'
guestions to the licensee was with regard to
the -- or the reply was with regard to the time
when you started the process. Could the staff
confirmthat that is the start-up process on a
t wo-year |license when exactly you start up?

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira
speaki ng.

Yes, the time cycle is that |ong.
It starts about nine nonths ahead of the date of
the expiry of the licence.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: Dr. G roux.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Yes. | would now
turn to Ms. Shiell's letter or brief.

On page 4 there are two statements
that | would Iike staff to respond to. The first
one, she says, at the end of the second paragraph:

"It is possible that the
genetic and somatic effects
are occurring, but they are

not being detected."”
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A question to staff is: [Is that
any concern? 1s there anything that can be done
with that?

It is a very general statement.

Do you have a reaction?

MR. PEREIRA: | will request
Dr. Thompson to conmment.

DR. THOMPSON: | am Dr. Thonmpson.

The environnmental nonitoring
informati on that is being collected, both for
routi ne operational work, as well as the data
collected for the status of the environnment
reports for all the facilities, do | ook at somatic
effects, essentially effects that would affect
comunity structure, reproduction capacity of fish
or benthic invertebrates. So this information on
somatic effects is avail abl e.

What is not available directly is
direct measurements of genetic damage, damage to
DNA for exanple or chronosomes. Those studies,
currently the met hodol ogi es don't exist to do this
on a routine basis. There are nore studies that
are being done in | aboratories, the methods don't
exist to do it routinely.

However, all the informati on we
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have so far on genetic effects shows that there is
a close relationship between the anount of genetic
damage and reproductive capacity. So indirectly,
by measuring reproductive capacity we are tracking
geneti c damage and popul ati ons.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Thank you.

The second question concerns the
next section where she argues that there is a
m xi ng zone with Sink, Vulture and McCl ean Lakes.
| think these are within the parameters. This is
where the treated water is sent to. She says this
is not described in the CEAA.

"By what authority is one
allowed to irradiate
organi zations in the

"m xing zone' ?"

The question to that -- 1 think
this has to be addressed -- is that inherently
part of the original licence that the m ning
operation will impact within its own perimeter?

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira again.
| will request Dr. Thompson to comment on that
guesti on.

DR. THOMPSON: In the |icensing

and then doing assessments we don't consider
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m xi ng zones per se. W do assess potenti al
environmental effects to all receiving environment
wat er bodi es whether they be near field or far
field.

That being said, when McCl ean Lake
was first |licensed and when the environnment al
i mpact statements was put forward and the panel
deci sion made, it was recogni zing that both Sink
and Vul ture Lakes would be affected. To
conpensate for those effects, COGEMA signed a fish
habi tat conmpensati on agreenent with the Depart nent
of Fisheries and Oceans.

So this has been part of the
l'icensing for McCl ean Lake, recognition that those
two wat er bodies would be affected and they have
been conpensated for.

MEMBER Gl ROUX: Thank you.

A final question to COGEMA now.
This is a conpletely different issue.

It is mentioned, | think it is in
staff's presentation, that there m ght be sonme
mlling of the Cigar Lake or in the JEB m || at
McCl ean Lake. We have anot her application from
Cameco which says that they are planning to m |

Ci gar Lake or at the Rabbit Lake.
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|s there an agreenent that both of
you m ght be sharing the Cigar Lake and mlling it
either at McCl ean or at Rabbit Lake?

MR. POLLOCK: The short answer is
yes, there is such an agreenent.

The plans -- we would hope to be
back with a request for an amendment, as we have
i ndi cated previously, within a period of several
years or perhaps less than three, two to three.

The plans are, or proposed pl ans
are that ore would be taken to the JEB m Il -- and
this requires, obviously, a future |license
amendment. It is not part of today's
consi deration.

One could | ook at either doing it
two ways.

One could either split the ore
itself and take some of the ore to McCl ean and
some to Rabbit, or one could take all of the ore
to McCl ean and, in effect, run the ore through the
front end of the mll at MClean, the | eaching
circuit.

The existing | eaching circuit at
McCl ean, if rearranged somewhat, is quite capable

of providing two parallel |eaching circuits which
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woul d take all of the Cigar Lake ore without any
maj or capital expenses for nodification or
expansi on of that |each circuit.

One could then split the agqueous
sol ution, the aqueous solution that then contains
t he uranium and one could then process that
aqueous solution into yell ow cake, some at MCl ean
and some at Rabbit.

Certainly that type of proposal in
terms of the Rabbit Lake operation would require a
new environmental assessment and that assessnment
has been started sonetime ago. It is not yet
conpl eted. One needs to have a fairly specific
pl an of action before you can conmplete an
environment al assessnment of that plant.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: M. Graham

MEMBER GRAHAM  Thank you.

My questions are around the
decomm ssioning of financial guarantees. | guess
first of all they would be to CNSC staff.

| understand there is a
$35 mllion decomm ssioning guarantee in place at
the present time, but condition G4 requires CRI to
prepare a revised prelimnary decomm ssi oni ng

pl an.
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| just want to know, where does
that revised plan stand and when do you expect to
have the revised plan in place, either to -- well,
| guess it should be to CRI

MR. POLLOCK: | was just | ooking
to re-read the precise cl ause.

| believe that the clause ties the
future m ning of the Sue A and Sue B deposits to
this revised plan, so clearly we will need to
submt that in sufficient time before we plan to
m ne those deposits so that we don't jeopardize
our schedule, or if we don't submt it in time
then we do clearly jeopardi ze our schedul e.

These are not | arge changes to
t he existing plan. Basically one would sinmply
make arguments as to why these pits can be
allowed to flood after perhaps placing a | ayer of
till on top of any residual m neralized materi al
at the bottom

There are also certain actions we
have taken over the |l ast couple of years which
woul d tend to reduce our future deconm ssioning
cost. We have done quite a bit of reseeding, for
exanpl e, of disturbed areas.

So whet her or not the dollars
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i nvol ved woul d go up or go down is yet to be
determ ned, but it would be, either way, a
smal | change.

Clearly the ball is in our court.
We need to formally submt this for approval in
time to have it done before we plan to m ne Sue A
and Sue B.

MEMBER GRAHAM | guess ny
guestion to the CNSC staff would be: [If the
$35 million amount woul d not decrease, it would
probably increase. |1s that correct.

MR. PEREIRA: It is difficult to

judge at the monent, but it is likely that it wl

i ncrease.
It is Ken Pereira responding.
MEMBER GRAHAM  Thank you.
Anot her question to CRI
| guess the other question | would
have is: Your $35 mllion that is in place nowis

assured by letters of credit. Are those letters
of credit guaranteed by a financial institution or
just by the corporation?

MR. POLLOCK: These are letters of
credit which we pay a fee or a prem um whatever

the right termis, to |large recogni zed financi al
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institutions, such as banks, for the provision of
a letter of credit.

MEMBER GRAHAM  And there is a
tracking of that such that if something happened
wher eby the prem uns were not being paid, CNSC
woul d be aware of that? They could follow up on
it, I presune?

MR. PEREIRA: Yes, that is
correct.

MEMBER GRAHAM  Thank you.

THE CHAI RPERSON: | have a
guestion, M. Pollock, with regards to your
coments about offering information to
Ms. Shiell, if she so wishes it.

I n your earlier CMVMD docunent, you
t al ked about the public information plan that you
have in the north and what you use regularly to
communi cate on that basis.

Are there any provisions at this
time for any regular type of public information to
be avail able to people such as Ms. Shiell who
l'ive in Saskatoon?

MR. POLLOCK: There are severa
broadly based materials which are distributed

broadly throughout the north. |If she is not on
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the distribution list, we can certainly add
interested | ocal stakeholders. | can't tell you
t hi s norning whether she is or is not on the

di stribution |ist.

These include a publication called
"Opportunities North", which covers all of the
m ning activities, which is basically published
t hrough the province.

We al so, as COGEMA, provide a
regul ar community update, which is distributed to
every native band and nmunicipal jurisdiction.
There are about 200, | believe, on the
di stribution list for that.

Then we have specific progranms if
there is a project that we wish to go out and
di scuss directly.

| should have added, as well, that
there are regular meetings with the Environment al
Quality Commttee which represents northern
residents in the Athabaska Basin. | can't tel
you for sure whether these distribution |ists do
or do not include Ms. Shiell. There is certainly
no reason why they shouldn't.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: To be nore

specific, there isn't a regular meeting schedul e
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bet ween your conpany and public information
meeti ngs, or whatever, outside of the north, for
exanpl e i n Saskat oon.

MR. POLLOCK: No. We organized a
meeting specifically for the two -- there are two
envi ronment al assessnments that we are involved in
that are currently active. One is this 6 to 8
m llion pound increase, and the other is a
proposal to bring Cigar Lake waste rock for
di sposal at the Sue C pit, again another itemthat
you will, | expect, see in the future in front of
t he Comm ssi on.

We went to some | engths to
organi ze a public neeting in Saskatoon. W
e-mail ed out on their own distribution list to a
great number of people representing environmental
organi zations, including Ms. Shiell. W
advertised twice in the newspaper and drew t he sum
total of -- | believe there were six or seven
peopl e there.

If I didn't count the conpany
representatives of the meeting or regul ator agency
representatives, there were some six or seven
peopl e there.

| will give credit to Ms. Shiell.
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She was one of those six or seven.

| admt that is only a one shot
type of meeting, but it was on something that if
there were concerns, one would have thought it
m ght have drawn | arger crowds.

| guess ny first reaction would be
that if we were to simply check that our
distribution lists for information included those,
t ogether with information as to how we may be
contacted, that woul d appear to us to be an
appropriate | evel.

| am not sure that having neetings
in empty halls is necessarily very effective.

THE CHAI RPERSON: Thank you.

My second question is to the CNSC
staff.

Wth regards to Item 2.4 reporting
on CMD H18. B, page 4, further to the questions
that were raised by ny fell ow Comm ssion menmbers,
| want to | ook at the regular reporting that goes
on at this time and connect that to any reporting
t hat could be foreseen on an interimbasis during
a licence period.

These are reports, ny

under standing, 2.4, for the Comm ssion staff.
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These are regul ar reports. |Is that correct?

What woul d be the provision that
woul d be possible in terns of the |icensee
reporting to you and then you reporting to the
Comm ssi on?

MR. PEREI RA: Ken Pereira
respondi ng.

The regul ar reports are reports
that are required as a condition of the licence:
an annual report; nonthly reporting on radiation
protection data; reports in response to action
| evel s that are specified in the |licence.

This is part of the nornmal
conpliance nonitoring that staff undertake in
confirmng that the safety is being managed
effectively by the licensee.

In terms of what we report to the
Comm ssion, we are still devel opi ng our strategy
for that. | expect that what we would report to
t he Comm ssion would be information fromthe
conpliance prograns, information on protection
with respect to the environment, health and
safety, and also reports on occupational health
and safety.

So a general report on the
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performance of the |licensee over the period since
the licence was issued.

Il will ask M. McCabe to comment
further, if he wishes to do so.

MR. McCABE: Thank you,

M. Pereira.

We have a staff member dedi cated
to reviewing the nonthly reports. All the
environmental reports and the radiation protection
reports are reviewed by our environnment al
i nspector, not only for conpliance with the limts
but al so for unfavourable trends in concentrations
or dose rates, and things |ike that.

These are foll owed up by an
investigation or a followup with the conpany, and
corrective action is taken as needed. These
reports get quite close scrutiny, not only by that
i ndi vi dual but by the project officers.

And we woul d report, as we have in
t he past, unfavourable trends if we found
anomal ous sanples. There is a procedure for
follow-up. Those are checked. |If that result is
confirmed and is significant, then we would
certainly report that.

THE CHAI RPERSON: Dr. Giroux.
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MEMBER Gl ROUX: | have a fi nal
guestion to COGEMA.

You menti oned that you were
replying sort of privately to Ms. Shiell. Since
her own brief was on the public record, maybe your
answer should also be in the public record and
submtted to us so that we can read it and see
what your answer is.

MR. POLLOCK: Certainly we have no
objection if that represents the Comm ssion's
wi shes.

The first part of the letter very
much substantially corresponds to what you have
al ready seen this norning. It is worded in such a
way that it is in the formof a letter to this
person as opposed to subm ssion to the Conmm ssion.

My Director of Environment has
worked on it further over the | ast day or two
since he got back from holidays, and we have tried
to then relate these general points which were
contained in our subm ssion this morning. | have
tried to relate themto the individual points that
she raised in her subm ssion.

So what we have is in effect the

general response that you have seen in this
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subm ssion this morning, and then | amtrying to
rel ate that.

Plus there are sonme relatively
pi cky technical details that we wanted to point
out; that we don't believe her technical point is
gquite correct. We are trying to get down into
some of these picky details as well.

Plus, we are providing a chart.
We did these anal yses of trends before, using
statistics, and have now reported the actual
guantitative statistical results.

We have put together what | hope
is alot simpler chart that hopefully makes this
poi nt about there being no trend in rel eases of
key contam nants with production in a nore
transparent and sel f-evident manner than
statistics.

Certainly if it is the
Comm ssion's wish that this also be on the record,
we have no objection or problemwi th that at all.

THE CHAI RPERSON: It is the
Comm ssion's wi sh, thank you.

Are there any further questions?
--- No response

THE CHAI RPERSON: Thank you very

StenoTran



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N - O

83

much, M. Poll ock.

MR. JACK: This conpletes the
public hearing on the matter of an application by
COGEMA Resources Inc. for a licence to operate the
McCl ean Lake Operation and to increase the

production limt.

The Comm ssion will deliberate and
wi Il publish its decision in due course. That
decision will be posted on the CNSC s website, as

well as distributed to participants.
| thank all participants for their
partici pation.

THE CHAlI RPERSON: We will now

taken an ei ght-m nute break. It is now 9:32, and
we will ask OPG to come to the front for the next
heari ng.

We will reconvene at 9:40. Thank
you.

--- Upon recessing at 9:32 a. m
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